## Minutes of Silsden Town Hall Steering Group 4th September 2013

Meeting held at Silsden Library 17:00

Attendees:

Niki Joseph – Public Halls
Nigel Gillatt – Estate Management (Project Lead/Chair)
John Peet – Community Representative
Jackie Kitwood - Libraries
Mark Davies – Public Halls
Moira Ackroyd – Libraries
Jane Saunders - Libraries

Apologies:

Noreen Akhtar – Keighley Neighbourhood Office Bob Evans – Facilities Management Councillor Mallinson – Ward Councillor Mandy Webb – Libraries Stephanie Moore – Estate Manager Elizabeth Phillips – Building User

No.	Item	Actions
1	Introductions	
2	Project update:	
a.	Stripping out is continuing and reconstruction has commenced in the toilets area and lift shaft.	
b.	Feature roof trusses and the top of the dome window have been revealed. It is proposed that these are going to be left exposed but changes to finishes and lighting will affect the timetable and the budget.	
C.	Dry and wet rot has been found in the timber ground floors remedial work is required.	
d.	The gap between the gable and the cemetery wall is to be cleaned out and a topping is to be used to stop the gap refilling with detritus.	
e.	The lift shaft is in place.	
f.	Potential changes to the project: The configuration of the ground floor w.c. is to change the floor of the office is not to be lowered. This is to become a ladies w.c.	
g.	It was proposed to use the lower room as a copier/server room but the Steering Group suggested that the loss of a	

- h. acceptable. Subsequent to the meeting a decision has been made that this room is to become a uni-sex toilet with additional assistance features installed for disabled people but it will not meet the full recommended standards for a disabled toilet as the width of the room is only approximately 1350mm and the minimum width for a recommended layout should be 1500mm. The general layout of the building is designed to comply with current disabled access standards. There will be a fully accessible toilet to be fitted upon the first floor and by having an additional downstairs unisex this will increase the usability of the premises without the need for staff or hirers being trained in evacuation techniques.
  - A follow on to the above is that the server and photocopier will be located in the cellar head area.
- i. There is to be no window in the upstairs ladies w.c., mechanical ventilation will be used and the lintel that was to be used is going be used for a serving hatch between the
- j. kitchen and down stairs rear letting room. Subsequent to the meeting a decision had had to be made not to proceed with the hatch on cost grounds as Building Control have stated that this has t be fully fire proofed with a shutter that is automatically connected to the fire alarm and is therefore cost prohibitive.
- k. The main hall is to have exposed beams and specialist lighting.
- I. The stage curtaining has been adapted to be configured with the ceiling changes.
  - A small plinth area is to remain in the hall where the old control room was as this is over a bulkhead to the stairs. This will be made a feature and made suitable for use by instructors and be the site of the light and sound virtual control room.
- m. The remainder of the cemetery end wall of the hall is to have mirrors and a ballet bar. The group requested that these have curtains to stop light reflections during performances. The floor in this part of the hall will be vinyl but will be level with remainder so as to not affect indoor bowling.
- n. The hall ceiling will have low speed fans to force warm air down and stop all the heat rising and staying amongst the rafters. The use of heat exchange extractors is being considered.

## Timetable:

A revised programme of works has been prepared as **the original timetable can no longer be met**. NSG had given an assurance that the Hall would be open for the 24<sup>th</sup> of November for the Christmas Market.

Subsequent to the meeting it has become apparent that because of the additional repair and maintenance works required that although the hall will be open for the Christmas Market it will shut again for 'snagging' and the earliest date that it will be open for regular booking is the 2<sup>nd</sup> of December but this date cannot be confirmed at this time.

The revised programme of works will be tabled at the next meeting.

## Budget:

The refurbishment scheme is on budget at circa. £300,000 however this does not include funding for the 'finishing touches' including the sound, light, curtaining etc. These have however been ordered 'at risk' as the Council is continuing to pursue other alternative sources of community funding.

Additional costs will also be incurred with the mechanical and electrical installations as the ceiling is being opened up and for the finishing of the ceiling trusses

The extent of the defects identified will require additional funds for the essential maintenance part of the works which are not part of the project but which are running concurrently including the replacement of **all** of the suspended timber ground floors, tanking walls etc

If there is an overspend on this Project this will be managed through the Property Programme Board and any spend will be balanced within the overall budget of the Programme which will not change.

- 3 Details and Finishes:
- a. The exposed roof beams will have a matt finish so as to not interfere with stage lighting.
- b. The signage will be corporate CBMDC a new sign is to be ordered stating it is Silsden Town Hall and Library with the new phone number.
- c. Finishes in the ballroom are to be matt so as to not affect performance lighting the preferred colour is a burgundy as this is a theatrical colour and light colours are not good for performance space.
- d. Curtains are required in the ball room these need to be blackout curtains with a burgundy finish which may be highlighted with gold tie backs or piping.
- e. It is estimated that the hall will seat approximately 100 to 120 persons for performances of these two can be

f. g. h. i.	dedicated disabled places. Tickets for disabled persons would need to be pre-booked to make sure there is adequate provision to cope with disabled persons attending events on the first floor.  A door is required between the lift and the former bar area. It was suggested that the number of kitchen units is reduced to leave more room for outside caterers own equipment e.g. warming cabinets etc. NSG to investigate.  The dumb waiter is working and is being serviced.  NSG to investigate the electrical needs of outside caters and	
4	space requirements.	
4	Future Governance and Community Input	
a.	The potential transfer of the hall to a third party entity is not part of the transition plan. The building will remain Council run, in line with other community halls across the district. This may be subject to a future review of the service as part of authority-wide initiatives.	
b.	The Council would like to encourage greater local involvement in the running of the hall on a day to day basis. The building will become a successful community hub if local persons participate in its running but with the Council being liable for safety etc. There is no intention to inadvertently or overtly pass liability to 3 <sup>rd</sup> parties. Protocols will however need to be in place prior to re-opening setting out responsibilities to ensure that the hall is used safely.	
C.	It is proposed to have a special Neighbourhood Forum meeting at the start of 2014 to gauge the appetite for increased community involvement and attain feedback from the Local Community.	
5	A.O.B	
	The Steering Group will contact local restaurants, caterers and licensees to identify potential suppliers for users of the hall with a view to create a list of suppliers to be shared with potential hirers once the hall has re-opened. The Steering Group would like the hall to benefit the Local Economy rather than bringing in services which could be provided locally.	All
	The date of the next meeting was not discussed a provisional date subject to agreement is the 16 <sup>th</sup> of October at 5:00 p.m. in Silsden Library. All of the building users prior to the refurbishment are invited to attend to provide improved local knowledge so that the building can be 'fine tuned' to meet local needs.	